Responses to Questions for RFP # 1011
Kinship Caregiver Program
Q1
A1
Q2
A2
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A5

Are letters of commitment from the LDSS required? If yes, where would you like
them uploaded?
No, letters of commitment from LDSS are not required.
Are letters of commitment from key collaborating agencies required? If yes, where
would you like them uploaded?
No, letters of commitment from key collaborating agencies are not required.
How specifically are you defining experience in providing “permanency services”?
Is it to mean the applicant has to have a contract with the OCFS? Is an applicant
who has significant experiencing in providing family support services, family
educational and skill-building services, person-centered services for high-need
children, and case management services, but doesn’t have a contract with OCFS,
eligible to apply?
It is unclear what part of the RFP this question is referring to. The phrase “permanency
services” is not used in the RFP in reference to an applicant’s eligibility. In order to submit
a proposal, the applicant must meet the requirements of Section 3.1 of the RFP. As
stated in Section 3.1, the Attachment 5 – Case Management Attestation Form must
certify a minimum of two (2) years’ experience providing case management services that
support the safety, permanency and well-being of children and families in New York
State. These terms are defined in Section 2.1 of the RFP. An applicant who does not
have a contract with OCFS but meets the requirements of Section 3.1 of the RFP, is
eligible to apply.
What number of children/families is expected to be served per year by each
applicant? Is there a minimum number to serve?
Applicants must consider the contract requirements for services under this grant
opportunity and determine what is a reasonable number of participants to serve annually.
Applicants proposal must clearly demonstrate the applicant’s knowledge of the
demographics, cultures, linguistic requirements, issues and service needs of the
community to be served by the proposed project (section 5.1A) There is no minimum
number to serve.
How is geographical distribution of services envisioned?
a. It is clear that each applicant must serve two counties. Given the funding
available, if each funded applicant only served two counties it appears there will be
a majority of counties that won’t be served or covered. If an applicant can serve
four or five counties, would that reflect more favorably in the scoring?
b. Would the above scenario require an applicant to submit two separate
applications indicating two counties per application?
c. Are there counties already currently covered in an existing program whose
contract period is extending through this RFP contract period (and thus is already
covered?)?
a. Proposing to serve more than two counties or boroughs, in and of itself, will not reflect
more favorably in the scoring. A proposal will need to discuss and justify how the
program will serve the community.
b. Each application should reflect one program’s ability to serve two (2) or more counties
or two (2) or more boroughs. Refer to Section 6.2 Evaluation Process, Method of Award
which states, “An applicant must submit separate proposals to apply for more than one
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award and must serve separate counties other than those named in their 1st proposal.
An applicant may receive up to two (2) awards from this funding opportunity.”
c. All existing contracts for kinship services are anticipated to end on 8-31-2020.
If an applicant with special expertise can serve a broader geographic range but
concentrate service for children with those special needs (ie Intellectual/
Developmental Disabilities, or Deaf and Hard of Hearing, etc.), can that applicant
apply to just serve that constituency?
Refer to Section 5.0 B. Target Population(s) for instructions on how to capture the
population a program intends to serve.
Is the applicant required to have an on-call arrangement and if so, parameters
required for such?
No, refer to Section 4.0 Program Requirements, Section 4.1 Desired Outcomes and
Program Requirements, V. Maintenance and Family Preservation for a description of
crisis intervention services.
Is there a tool being used to measure the outcome of less stress on families?
Yes, please refer to Attachment 4 – Participant Satisfaction Survey, which is to be filled
out by participants to determine if program services reduce levels of participants’ stress.
Are costs for family engagement activities, and/or transportation to be involved in
those, expected or eligible grant fund expenses?
Allowable costs are determined by funding source. At this time costs for family
engagement activities and/or transportation to be involved in program services are
eligible grant fund expenses.
Are there demographics available by county?
Applicants must conduct their own data research. OCFS does not maintain data on
informal kinship arrangements. (Section 5.1 A1).
If an organization applies for 2 grants under this RFP—each to cover 2 counties—
and we win both awards, would we end up with one contract with OCFS for the
sum total of the two awards OR 2 contracts with NYS OCFS?
No, each funded application would have a separate NYS OCFS contract.
On page 10 of RFP under 2.3 Purpose and Funding Availability, there’s a sentence
in the 1st paragraph that reads: The purpose of this RFP is to fund new Kinship
Caregiver Programs to increase the state’s capacity to achieve safety and wellbeing for children living with kinship families. We currently operate a Kinship
Caregiver Program that was funded through a grant by OCFS from your 2015 RFP.
Given that we are a current provider, are we eligible to apply this time? That is,
would we be considered a NEW program?
Yes, this is a new RFP for Kinship Caregiver Services with new programmatic
requirements. All organizations that meet the listed minimum requirements provided in
Section 3.1 of the RFP are eligible to apply.
According to eligibility requirements for families, we understand that families with
legal guardianship or kinship foster care placements cannot be served by this
program. As this is different from the last RFP for the Kinship Caregiver program,
and our subsequent program, we would like some clarification: does this mean
that 1017 families cannot be served but Article 6 families can be served.
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No, 1017 placement resources can be served by this program, as these relatives or other
suitable persons do not have legal guardianship. Families with Article 6 custody are
eligible to be served under this grant.
We would also like clarification on the section of the narrative for Objectives,
Tasks and Performance Measures. For the narrative, you ask that we provide our
program objectives and how they relate, in part, to the RFP outcomes. In the
Performance Targets form, Attachment 3, there are 2 outcomes statements
(maintenance and family preservation, and family engagement). Are these what
you are referring to as RFP outcomes? Or are you referring to the outcomes
identified at the beginning of the RFP - to support and strengthen kinship families
to achieve permanency and well-being for children residing with kinship families.
Refer to Section 5.0 Proposal Content and Submission and Section 5.1 Technical
Proposal Content/Work Plan for expected outcomes.
RFP Section 4.1, Paragraph number 1 states “Applicants are to provide programs
designed specifically for kinship families, with legal custody or informal
arrangements, caring for children 0-18.”
a. Which type(s) of legal custody are applicable to receive services? Does “legal
custody” include families who have been granted N-docket/1017 custody and
those with Article 6 legal custody?
b. What are the requirements to be considered “kinship” for purposes of this RFP?
Do “fictive kin” relationships qualify for programming if they have been awarded
legal custody?
a. Legal custody includes court-issued orders that detail the custody arrangement as
mentioned in Section 5.0 Proposal Content and Submission. Informal care is defined as
a child that is being cared for by someone who does not have legal custody or guardianship
of the child, which could include 1017 Placements.
b. Refer to Section 5.3 Key Concepts for the definition of “kinship care” and Section 2.3
Purpose of Funding Availability which states, “Kinship Caregiver Program services must
include best practices in the field that address the multiple needs of children residing with
grandparents, relatives, or any other non-parent caregiver.”
RFP Section 4.1, Paragraph number 6 references the program design having to
include a Program Director.
a. Is this position to be considered a direct or indirect position?
A program director providing support to this project would be considered a direct position.
Please refer to Section 5.2 Proposed Budget for additional information.
The new RFP requires a Program Director with a minimum of a master's level
degree in social work, psychology, or human services and a Case Manager with a
bachelor’s level degree.
Can these qualifications be modified to include " or a bachelor’s level with X years
of experience'; 'or Associate's level with X years of experience' as the $150,000
award would not support hiring master’s level and bachelor’s level staff. At the
current agency rate for similar positions, over 75% of the budget cover personnel
costs. This leaves very little for travel throughout large geographic counties (1258
sq. miles and 1458 sq miles) for home visits; monthly family engagement functions
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in both counties; monthly caregiver and child support groups in both counties;
collateral visits; three community education session in each county per quarter,
respite outings, etc
The requirements for this position have been amended. See Section 4.1 Desired
Outcomes and Program Requirements of the amended RFP for additional information.
The current director has a BA. She has been the Director of our OCFS Kinship
program since 2012 and has over 30 years of experience in the field including:
Clinical Social Worker II with our agency through a waiver from NYS OMH; Child
and Family Specialist, Crisis Counselor and an Intake Coordinator/Senior
Psychiatric Social Work Assistant for the Oneida County Department of Mental
Health. Our Outreach Worker has been employed for four years in the Kinship
Care Management program and has 11 years’ experience in the field as a CNA, a
residence counselor at the Rescue Mission and a residence counselor at UCP.
Would these staff be able to continue working in the program?
See A17.
What is considered case management for this program? Section 3.1 paragraph 3
Refer to Section 4.1, I. Case Management and Referral for the definition and examples of
case management.
Is this different from the past where there was a component one (support group)
and component two (support group and case management)? Section 3.1
Yes, this procurement is separate and apart from the 2015 grant opportunity for Kinship
Caregiver Services. There are no separate components for service delivery under the
current RFP #1011.
Can case management and Ulster RAPP staff be considered personnel, or would
they be contract services and can we do the program contracting those services in
other counties or do they need to be on our staff? Section 4.1 I
Applicant should identify personnel staff and refer to Section 5.2 Proposed Budget for
additional information.
Do all families need to be involved in Case management or can they just be part of
the support group and come to that for as long as they like? Section 4.1 II
Yes, applicants must provide services that include ALL of the core components described
in 4.1 Desired Outcomes and Program Requirements. All families need to be involved in
Case management.
If a case is closed with case management can they still come to support group?
Section 4.1 II
Yes. Families may still attend support groups but may not be counted in the target
population as case management services have ended.
What are the responsibilities and expectations of a case manager? Section 3.1
Programs define the job descriptions of all titles paid with funds from this contract,
ensuring that all services described in 4.1 Desired Outcomes and Program Requirements
are being met. For additional information, please refer to 4.1.I I. Case Management and
Referral.
Can we contract out for case management services? Section 5.2, B.1
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Yes, applicants may subcontract components of the scope of work, including case
management services. Please refer to Section 5.2, B1 for additional information on
requirements for contractual and consultant services.
The section on ‘Miscellaneous expenses’ it states that food and refreshments are
not allowable expenses for staff does that mean that we cannot buy food for the
program? Section 5.2, B.5.e
Food and refreshments for program participants are qualifying items for reimbursement
under this procurement. Food and refreshments for staff are not allowable expenses.
Section 5.2 (4)(B)e.
If participants just want support group and not case management do we need
authentication on their guardianship status? Section 4.1 II
Yes, authentication on legal status is required.
What do you mean by having a full-time case manager? Would having several
people working on case management be equivalent to one full time case manager?
Section 4.1 I
No, as per Section 4.1, “Program design must include sufficient staff with at least one
full-time case manager.” Hiring multiple staff to cover the full-time position would not meet
this requirement.
For the children’s support groups that we are required to offer once per month per
county, as outlined in section 4.1.II, pages 17-18 of the RFP: are these groups
required to be for children of all ages? It seems incredibly difficult to design one
support group that addresses the needs of both four-year olds and sixteen-year
olds. Can we, for example, hold two groups per month per county, one for younger
youth and one for older youth?
Yes, the program may hold more than one support group for children/youth.
Since grantees cannot serve legal guardians or foster parents, but this RFP also
asks us to make referrals to family court and ACS, as outlined in section 2.3, page
10, and section 4.1.I, page 16, of the RFP: if a caregiver became a legal guardian or
foster parent while a grantee was providing case management through the
program, would the grantee have to close their case?
Yes, if the caregiver became the legal guardian or foster parent for the child, then the
case would no longer be eligible to be served through the Kinship Caregiver Program.
Legal guardians may be referred to Regional Permanency Resource Centers for
services.
Can group services be combined with group services for people in other custodial
situations, as long as this OCFS grant funding is only used for activities/services
for the kinship families targeted in this program? For example, could children with
kinship caregivers do recreational activities (paid for by this grant) with children
who have caregivers with legal guardianship (paid for by other funds)? Could
kinship caregivers (paid for by this grant) participate in support groups with
caregivers with other custodial arrangements (paid for by other funds)?
Services and programming must meet the needs of the children and families to be
served. There might be instances of crossover in programming that meets the needs of
multiple groups. In these cases, documentation including notes justifying how the
specified event serves the needs of the child/family, identification of the specific
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children/family who participated under this funding and the qualifying staff and staff time
providing the programming must be clear and available to OCFS upon request.
We are a subordinate government entity that qualifies for non-for-profit tax status.
Do we meet eligibility requirements for this funding?
Please refer to 3.1 Minimum Qualifications. Applicants must be a not-for-profit
organization or voluntary agency. Government entities are not eligible to apply. If a
subordinate entity is classified as a government entity or created by federal or state
statute, then they are not eligible.
Can we subcontract the crisis management, accompaniment, and advocacy, while
managing the core case management, referrals, and support groups directly?
Yes, please see A25.
Are there any services that cannot be subcontracted?
No, however, Subcontractor agreements must have written approval from OCFS. Please
refer to section 3.3 and 5.2 of the RFP for additional information regarding
subcontracting.
In section 7.11 of the above cited RFP, it indicates that vendors are encouraged to
consider the utilization of certified SDVOB’s for at least 6 % of discretionary nonpersonnel services.
Is there a form that should be utilized to report what vendor we intend to use
(similar to the Utilization Plan that we complete for MWBE potential
subcontractors)? And, if there are no suitable SDVOB vendors in our area, is there
somewhere in the application where that issue should be addressed?
Vendors may utilize the SDVOB 100 Utilization Form to develop a list of intended
vendors. It is available on the OGS SDVOB website at
https://ogs.ny.gov/veterans/division-service-disabled-veterans-business-developmentcompliance-and-reporting#contractor-reporting-forms If vendors are unable to locate
suitable SDVOB vendors they should document the efforts they took to locate them. The
OCFS Contract Compliance Unit (CCU) will assist vendors with SDVOB 200 Waiver
forms as appropriate. Waivers so not need to be addressed during the application
process, but after award, the documentation should be kept on file.
Referencing pages 1 and 16 -"Applicant's staff must obtain a copy of proof of legal
custody status for all formal kinship arrangements" - what will staff need to obtain
from informal kinship families, an attestation?
Yes, the intake documentation will ask families to attest to their legal custodial status.
Will you be making these slides available to us after the bidder's conference is
over?
Yes, the PowerPoint slides from the Bidder’s Webinar have been released with the Q&A.
Will letters of support from LDSS be accepted even though not required?
Yes.
The programs described by this RFP are very similar to the programs described
and funded by the RPRC programs. IS there any intention on the part of OCFS to
have the kinship model expand on the RPRCs or build off of as a similar model?
No, not at this time.
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Will you provide PASTA curriculum to us?
Please refer to Section 4.1 VI. and follow the link under Parenting a Second Time
Around.
If the child attends school in a different county, can the worker participate in a nondesignated county if it's in the best interest for the child?
OCFS cannot address case-specific examples at this time. Successful applicants would
need to confer with OCFS.
if an eligible caregiver becomes a legal guardian or foster parent while a grantee is
providing case management through this program, would the grantee have to
close their case immediately?
Please see A30.
what does the follow-up look like? can a case which was closed out become a
case again?
A case which was closed can reopen if there is a new need for kinship caregiver program
services. Refer to 4.1 Desired Outcomes and Program Requirements, section V.
Maintenance and Family Preservation for additional information.
If the kinship is not legal guardian and it's not a foster care arrangement, what
would the details be for the case? Does temporary guardianship qualify?
OCFS cannot speak to details of any case. Caregivers with legal guardianship or kinship
foster care placements are not eligible to be served under this grant opportunity. If
temporary guardianship is referring to an informal arrangement of a child that is being
cared for by someone that does not have legal custody or “Formal/Legal” guardianship of
the child, then the foster care arrangement would qualify under this grant opportunity.
For the respite requirement, what is the implication of the requirement that we be
able to provide respite "as needed"? Does that imply that respite must be offered
to meet individual needs of families rather than through pre-planned activities for
children?
Respite can be both offered to meet the individual needs of families and/or through preplanned activities for children. See Section 5.3 for additional information.
Kinship foster care is ineligible. Could you define what you mean by this? Are
you referring only to certified kinship foster parents?
Yes, in reference to certified or approved kinship foster parents, caregivers with legal
guardianship or kinship foster care placements are not eligible to be served under this
grant opportunity.
can group services through this program be combined with group services for
people in other custodial situations, as long as this OCFS grant funding is only
used for activities/services for the kinship families targeted in this program?
Refer to Section 4.0 Program Requirements. Applicant’s staff must maintain all accurate
program participant records and documentation to support service delivery. This is not
recommended but documentation needs to support participation by qualifying individuals.
See A31.
Where will referrals come from? DCFS?
Refer to Section 4.0 I. Case Management and Referral and 5.0 Proposal Content and
Submission. Applicants should describe Target Population and their plans for referrals in
their proposals.
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On page 10 of RFP under 2.3 Purpose and Funding Availability, there’s a sentence
in the 1st paragraph that reads: The purpose of this RFP is to fund NEW Kinship
Caregiver Programs to increase the state’s capacity to achieve safety and wellbeing for children living with kinship families. We currently operate a Kinship
Caregiver Program that was funded through a grant by OCFS from your 2015 RFP.
Given that we are a current provider, are we eligible to apply this time? That is,
would we be considered a NEW program?
See A12
According to eligibility requirements for families, we understand that families with
legal guardianship or kinship foster care placements cannot be served by this
program. As this is different from the last RFP for the Kinship Caregiver program,
and our subsequent program, we would like some clarification: does this mean
that 1017 families cannot be served but Article 6 families can be served.
See A13.
Can the Program Director position be shared between other programs in an
agency?
Yes, as long as the Program Director’s total FTE (full time equivalent) does not exceed
100% with all programs combined, and applicant is able to supply backup documentation
to this effect with its claims.
Can one bidder submit multiple proposals?
Yes, please see Section 6.2 under Method of Award.
Are extra points awarded for serving more than the minimum of 2 counties?
See A5.
Is there a minimum or maximum caseload size for case managers?
No.
Is there an expectation that a particular entity will provide the bulk of the referrals
for this program or is the expectation that these will be community referrals?
There is no expectation that a particular entity will provide referrals.
Can two organizations with strengths in different counties partner to facilitate
services in the two counties by sharing services - but each submit independent
proposals?
Yes, but only the highest scoring proposal(s) for the same counties/boroughs would be
eligible for an award. Please refer to Section 6.2 Evaluation Process for additional
information.
I cannot find the projected number of families required to be served annually. Can
you please clarify? Thank you.
Please see A4.
Are the support groups an education groups mandatory attendance, or do they
just have to be offered?
Refer to Section VI. Desired Outcomes, Program Objectives and Performance
Targets.
Is there a specific electronic health record that will be used?
No.
Is the child eligible if they are in county custody?
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No, a child in county custody is not eligible to receive services under this grant
opportunity.
On page 18 of the RFP, under "Maintenance and Family Preservation," (bullet 4)
does the "professional social worker" engaging with families to provide support
during crisis interventions need to be a certified social worker, or does this refer to
other social work-related professions?
It can include other social work-related professions.
Will the slides be available for future review?
Please see A37.
Will bidders whose attestation shows a history of serving multiple counties receive
priority in this RFP process?
No.
Can we offer two child support groups per site per month (or 4 support groups
total per month) to account for the different needs of younger children and
teenagers/adolescents?
Please see A29.
Can the support groups be offered to Kinship and 1017 guardians if they want to
come? Will they count towards our numbers if so?
The purpose of this RFP is to serve families with legal custody and informal
arrangements. Other participants may participate but will not count towards performance
targets.
Is there an age limit for the child? Do they age out at 18 since they become a legal
adult?
This RFP is intended to serve children ages 0-18, See section 2.3 Purpose of Funding
Availability
can one agency apply for 2 separate grants if the programs are run out of 2
separate sites
Yes. See A52.
Would a respite outing be able to count as a monthly contact?
No, as a monthly contact should include the kinship providers as well.
What are the repercussions if the outcomes are not met? Will there be a timeframe
to make program changes or improvements? Could it impact funding from one
year to the next?
A program improvement plan (PIP) would be issued and agreed upon by the provider and
OCFS if outcomes are not met. Failure to meet contract requirements could impact
funding.
What does it mean that one of the two required sites must be the "primary site"?
What is the definition of "primary" in this context?
For award purposes, the primary site address will be used to assign the proposal to one
of the OCFS regions as identified in RFP Section 6.2. “Counties Listed by OCFS
Regions”. This determination must be made by the applicant.
It's noted that a program director is required, is it expected that the program
director be assigned to this program full time?
No, the Director position does not have to be full time, see A51.
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Understanding that services must be made available to all eligible families, can
outreach services be targeted toward specific populations, such as those caring
for the children of incarcerated individuals?
Please see A6.
Do the applicants have to be previously engaged with the 2nd county to qualify or
does it matter if it's a new partnership?
Please see A49. Programs who apply must be able to provide services in at least (2) or
more counties and/or Boroughs of NYS, see Section 2.1.
How many families, caregivers, children will be required to be served per county,
per year? Do we have to serve an equal number per county, or will the total
number be cumulative?
Please see A4.
Who will refer families and how many are required to be served in one year?
See A48 and A4.
Do we need to submit Attachment 5 – Case Management Attestation prior to Feb 28
deadline?
Yes. Refer to Section 5.4 Proposal Content, Section 5.5 Proposal Submittal Process, and
Section 10.0 Program-Specific Requirements and Forms.
Will there be time to phase in services in what might be a new county served?
Yes, “Applicants are expected to be ready to implement programs within sixty (60) days
of the contract start date.” Refer to Section 4.1 Desired Outcomes and Program
Requirements, I. Case Management and Referral.
Does the training have to be facilitated by program staff or can it be other staff in
the agency already doing this?
No, training can be by other staff in the agency, Refer to Section 4.1 part III. Education
and Section 5.1 E.
Upon closing case at 12 months, will program support continued attendance of
caregivers and youth at peer groups etc.?
Yes, families may still attend support groups but may not be counted in the target
population as case management services have ended. See A23.
As kinship family cases must be closed after 12 months (unless there is good
reason for extending), will support group participants who continue in the program
still be counted, or even supported with the funding?
No. See A23.
Will kinship families who are not eligible to be served due to legal guardianship or
kinship foster care be allowed to participate in programs, if there are additional
sources of funding supporting these activities? Clearly, they will not be reported
as part of the adult and youth that count, but is it acceptable to have them there? I
did note that the RFP shared that all children in the family should be served, even
if they are not kinship children, although they would not count.
No. The purpose of this RFP is to serve families with legal custody and informal
arrangements. Legal guardians may be referred to Regional Permanency Centers for
services. Kinship foster parents are served by their LDSS. See Section 2.3.
Youth peer support groups are different from our current offering of 4-H Youth
Programming. Our Teen Group would be more similar. It would be good to know
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what is expected at a youth peer group, and what ages are expected for targeting
such a group.
Support groups for youth are to be tailored to the needs of the clients being served.
One pre-submission upload template appears to be in error on the application.
When one attempts to download template for OCFS 3460 (MWBE EEO), the
template for MacBride Fair Employment principles is downloaded instead. Please
advise.
The correct OCFS-3460 MWBE and EEO Policy Statement Form is provided with this
Q&A document. It is also available from the download links provided in Sections 1.6 and
8.0 of the RFP or from the OCFS public forms page located at the following web link:
https://ocfs.ny.gov/main/documents/forms_keyword.asp
Section 5.2 NPS Budget items 1: Contractual/Consultant Services for the budget,
the RFP states “the contractor must get prior written approval from OCFS for…a
single subcontractor that exceeds $50,000 or 50% of the contract value”. Please
clarify if the approval is needed if the allocated portion charged to OCFS is less
than $50,000, but the total contract is greater. Similarly, the section states that 3
written bids are required for contracts under $15,000. Again, is that for the total
contract value or just the portion charges to OCFS?
As per Section 5.2, prior written approval is needed when the allocated amount exceeds
the portion charged against the OCFS funds, so likewise three written bids would be
required when the portion of OCFS funds exceeds the allotted threshold (not the total
project cost, inclusive of match).
Do we need to submit all the required forms at the same time with our proposal?
Yes. Refer to Section 1.6 Submission of Proposals. Please also see A84.
OCS form 2634 pg 2 – Do you want the list of the board?
Refer to Section 1.6 Submission of Proposals.
NPS Budget categories, Supplies, Section 5.2, B4 (page 31): states that for
supplies agencies have to “Obtain three written or verbal quotes for any single
item costing $2,500 or less.” Please clarify if there is any lower dollar limit
threshold or do all supply purchases that cost $1-$2,500 require three quotes.
As per section 5.2, any single item costing $1-$2,500 will require written or verbal quotes.
Written bids are only required for any single item costing over $2,500.
Service-Disabled Veteran-Owned Business (SDVOB), Section 7.11 (Page 58):
Please clarify if the minimum spending of 6% on SDVOB is a mandatory
requirement or a recommendation as per the RFP.
The RFP on page 58 states that “Therefore, and consistent with its Master Goal
Plan, OCFS strongly encourages vendors who contract with OCFS to consider the
utilization of certified SDVOBs that are responsible and responsive for at least six
(6) percent of discretionary non-personnel service spending in the fulfillment of the
requirements of their contracts with OCFS.”
The PowerPoint slides for the Bidder’s Webinar for Request for Proposals RFP #
1001 Kinship Caregiver Program that took place on February 3rd, 2020 on slide 29
states that “Contractors are required to spend a minimum of thirty percent (30%) of
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their overall discretionary budget through New York State-certified Minority or
Women-Owned Business Enterprises (MWBEs); at a minimum 15% with a MBE and
15% with a WBE; and six (6%) percent of their overall discretionary budget through
Service Disabled Veteran Owned Businesses (SDVOBs).”
Legislation requires spending of 15% MBE, 15% WBE, and 6% SDVOB as stated.
However, our governing agencies are aware of the difficulty of meeting all these
requirements simultaneously and entertain waivers if one goal is met and the others
cannot be. It is required to attempt and document all good faith efforts to obtain the goals
and waivers are accepted with justification if, despite attempts, the goals cannot be met.
Program Requirements, Desired Outcomes and Program Requirements, Section
4.1 (page 16) states that “Applicants must offer case management services to
every open case.” Please clarify if there is a minimum duration that case
management services have to be offered to families.
All services described in Section 4.1 Desired Outcomes and Program Requirements must
be provided to every open case to be served under this grant opportunity.
Does there need to be a client file for each participant of the various groups of
Adult support group, Child support group, Educational session, Family
Engagement activities?
Refer to Section 4.1 Desired Outcomes and Program Requirements, Section I. Case
Management and Referral which states, “Applicant’s case managers must maintain a file
for each family participating in the program.”
Is there a specific training for the peer-to-peer support group leaders that
programs need to be aware of and the associated cost for the budget?
There is currently no specified training. Applicants are responsible for determining what
trainings are appropriate for the peer-to-peer support group leaders.
What are the regulations for Kinship Programs for staffing ratio’s for child respite
and child support group participation? Are there any restrictions to offering respite
care such as when the child has special needs or other considerations that might
endanger the health and safety of the child and case manager/program staff e.g.
children that have increased anxiety when caregiver is away, have a tendency to
run away, bang their heads, history of suicidal ideation and related
hospitalizations, aggressive behavior etc.
Support groups and services for youth are to be tailored to the needs of the youth being
served.
The current Kinship Care Coordination program requires mandatory attendance by
program staff at the annual OCFS conference in Albany. Is this going to be a
requirement in the new 5-year program cycle as well? If yes, will it be required that
all staff attend?
See Section 4.1 Desired Outcomes and Program Requirements of the amended RFP for
additional information.
Are there any income eligibility criteria for families to receive services? The
current Kinship Care Coordination program stated that children meeting 200
percent TANF income guidelines will be eligible for services
This is a new RFP for Kinship Caregiver Services with new programmatic requirements.
There are no income guidelines for eligible services.
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Section 4.1 Desired Outcomes and Program Requirements / I. Case Management
and Referral / Paragraph 8 (Page 16): “Applicant’s staff must obtain a copy of proof
of legal custody status for all formal kinship arrangements.”
a.
RFP also states that families with legal guardianship or foster care are not
eligible – please reconcile/ explain.
Families who have been granted legal guardianship, have executed a kingap agreement,
or are certified or approved kinship foster parents are not eligible.
Section 4.1 Desired Outcomes and Program Requirements / I. Case Management
and Referral / Paragraph 11 (page 17): There is mention of “participant records”
and “documentation” however no additional details are included.
a. Is there a specific EHR system that will need to be used? (such as Connections)
b. Can any electronic health record be used?
c. Will documentation need to be shared with OCFS?
d. How will the participation survey be conducted/collected? Paper or electronic?
e. How will the agency be expected to share the survey data once collected? Will it
need to be input into a system?
a. No.
b. Yes.
c. Yes.
d. Applicants must distribute and collect completed participant surveys. Results must be
available for OCFS review. The way surveys are to be conducted, collected, or shared
will be determined at a future date.
e. See d.
Section 4.1 Desired Outcomes and Program Requirements / I. Case Management
and Referral / Paragraph 14 (page 17): OCFS’ Program Manager must approve all
cases that will be open for more than twelve (12) months from the date of intake,
however there is not additional information about criteria for discharge:
a. If family is disengaged, does not attend, does not participate in the program,
etc., what is the allowed timeframe for closing the case?
b. Is there a minimum expected enrollment for families?
c. If changes occur in the status of the child, does the case have to close
immediately? Is there an allowable timeframe to support the family in transitioning
services?
a. Applicants must describe the plan to discharge cases in their proposal.
b. No, applicants must consider the contract requirements for services under this grant
opportunity and determine what is a reasonable number of participants to serve
annually.
c. Yes, programs must only serve eligible families as described in the RFP.
Section 4.1 Desired Outcomes and Program Requirements / Section II Support
Groups / Paragraph 1 (page 17): It states that group must be conducted a minimum
of one (1) time per month in each county:
a. What happens if the program offers the group/family engagement events/etc.
and the family does not attend?
b. Will that negatively impact target outcomes?
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a. Applicants must describe a plan to provide groups/family engagement activities
relevant to the population being served in their proposal.
b. OCFS cannot determine the impact on target outcomes without case specific
examples. Refer to Sections 4.1 Desired Outcomes and Program Requirements and
9.0 Glossary of Outcome-Based Contracting Terms.
Section 4.1 Desired Outcomes and Program Requirements / Section II Support
Groups / Paragraph 1 (page 17): “Programs must allocate funds for providing peerto-peer support groups, including training for peer support group leaders.”
a. If the agency also has a Therapeutic Foster Boarding Home (TFBH) program, can
one of the already designated TFBH parent’s run the peer to peer group?
b. Does the peer to peer leader have to be currently enrolled in the program?
c. Could the peer to peer leader have previously participated in the Kinship
Caregiver Program and has since been discharged successfully?
d. Can the agency provide “pass through funds” to the peer leader in addition to
the training for incentive?
OCFS cannot address case-specific examples at this time. Applicants must describe the
plan to provide peer to peer support groups in their proposal.
Section 4.1 Desired Outcomes and Program Requirements / VI. Desired Outcomes,
Program Objectives and Performance Targets:
a. What happens if the program does not meet the outcomes?
b. How long does the agency have to make program changes or improve?
a. A program improvement plan (PIP) would be issued and agreed upon by the provider
and OCFS if outcomes are not met. Failure to meet contract requirements could
negatively impact funding.
b. This is determined on a case by case basis.
Section 4.1 Desired Outcomes and Program Requirements / IV. Family Engagement
/ Paragraph 2 (Page 18): Applicant’s staff must administer a satisfaction survey to
caregivers and kinship children over the age of 14, to determine participant
satisfaction, prior to case closure.
a. If the family is non-responsive to outreach and the family does not complete the
survey, how does this impact closure of the case?
b. How will the participation survey be conducted/collected? Paper or electronic?
c. How will the agency be expected to share the survey data once collected? Will it
need to be input into a system?
d. Will the raw data be provided to OCFS or will there be additional expectations?
Applicants must distribute and collect the participant survey. Results must be available
for OCFS review. See A97
2.3 Purpose and Funding Availability / Paragraph 1 (page 10): The Kinship
Caregiver Programs will serve families with informal or legal custody of a
child(ren) between the ages of 0-18.
a. See question 1 above: “Applicant’s staff must obtain a copy of proof of legal
custody status for all formal kinship arrangements.” Please clarify circumstances
of eligibility, including legal custody/guardian status.
b. If DSS/the local county has custody of the child but the child is living with a
kinship relative, is that family eligible?
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c. Who has custody of the child?
d. Will temporary guardianship be eligible?
e. What’s the difference between legal custody (eligible) and legal guardianship
(not eligible)?
f. Who is responsible/legally able to consent to have the child enrolled in and
receiving services? (for example, the county, kinship caregiver, parent?)
g. caregiver becomes a legal guardian, how quickly does the case need to be
closed?
h. Will the family be required to sign consent to share personal health information
with OCFS? What if the family declines? Can services still be provided?
i. Is the agency expected to complete any background checks on the kinship
caregiver?
j. Is the agency expected to determine if the kinship arrangement is in the best
interest of the child?
k. Is the agency expected to determine if the kinship arrangement is a safe and/or
appropriate fit for the child?
l. Referrals:
i. How will referrals flow?
ii. Who are the anticipated referral sources?
iii. Will they come from each county OCFS division?
m. Will there be an OCFS county worker assigned to each case?
a. Legal custodians should provide copy of the court order granting them custodianship.
b. No, in this case services would be provided by the LDSS.
c. In informal custodial arrangements, the biological parents maintain legal custody of
the child(ren).
d. No.
e. The court order issued to a family determines custody or guardianship.
f. This depends on the legal status of the case.
g. As soon as possible with referral to a Regional Permanency Resource Center.
h. There are no requirements to share personal health information with OCFS under this
procurement.
i. No.
j. No.
k. Programs must adhere to Mandated Reporter requirements and report any safety
concerns, though it is not the applicant’s responsibility to determine if the kinship
arrangement is an “appropriate fit” for the child(ren).
I. REFERRALS
i. Applicants are to determine and describe how to process referrals in their proposal.
ii. Applicants are to determine and describe referral sources in their proposal.
iii. Not necessarily.
m. Informal kinship arrangements might not have a case open with OCFS.
2.2 OCFS Statewide Considerations / Disconnected/High-Need Youth (page 9):
“This priority includes targeting services for “disconnected/high need youth” who
are: youth aging out of foster care”, however age range is 0-18.
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a. Can these youths be served until their 21st birthday due to being identified as
“high need youth”?
No. Please see Section 2.3 Purpose and Funding Availability.
3.1 Minimum Qualifications / Paragraph 2 (page 11): “agencies may only provide
services to kinship families that reside in the counties that they propose to serve.”
a. What if the legal custody entity is in a different county than the kinship family?
For example, the child is in the custody of a non-designated county but the kinship
family lives in a county with services designated – can this family receive services
as long as the kinship home is in the designated county?
b. Can the monthly home visit be conducted in a different county if that’s
requested by the family to meet their needs?
a. Children in the custody of any Local District of Social Services Commissioner
(county) do not qualify for services under this grant opportunity.
b. Services must take place, and the families must reside, in the counties or boroughs
that applicants are proposing to serve.
V. Maintenance and Family Preservation / Paragraph 5 (page 19): “Applicant’s staff
must conduct and document a follow up interaction with the kinship family six (6)
months post case closure to ensure the child(ren) has/have been safely maintained
in the home or has/have returned to parent(s).”
a. Define “follow up interaction” at 6 months.
i. Does one outreach phone call meet the requirement?
b. How does this effort need to be documented?
c. Does this information need to be reported out to OCFS?
d. Is it sufficient to have the outreach documented internally?
OCFS cannot address case-specific examples at this time. Applicants are to describe the
plan for follow-up with discharged cases.
Administrative Expense: what is the cap for administrative costs?
Please refer to Section 5.2(B)(5)(f) for this information.
Please clarify “three community education sessions per contract quarter in each
county served” The PASTA program is a 8 week series. Will each session of the 8
week PASTA series be counted as one education session?
Yes. Please see A40 for additional info.
Our agency currently contracts with our LDSS to provide case management
services for their In-Care of cases. These cases consist primarily of children
residing with someone other than their parents, but not foster care. Would we be
able to serve those same cases through this initiative?
If the family is eligible to receive services under this program, but the applicant is already
receiving funding from another source to provide services to the family, then this would
NOT be permitted.
Would LDSS be the source of referrals?
While a LDSS could be a source of referrals, many informal kinship arrangements may
not have had contact or cases with the LDSS.
How would an Agency verify program eligibility?
Refer to Section 4.1 Desired Outcomes and Program Requirements.
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In reference to Section 3.1, Minimum Qualifications, paragraph two, do applicants
need to serve the entirety of 2 or more counties? For example, we are located in
Tompkins County, and have provided services to families in adjacent counties on a
case-by-case basis. However, we are not sufficiently staffed to cover all of the
families in need of our services in the adjacent counties. Is it sufficient to
demonstrate provision of service to people in 2 or more counties on a case-bycase basis, or should applicants be prepared to provide coverage throughout each
represented county?
Applicants must be able to provide services to kinship families in two (2) or more counties
in order to qualify for this opportunity. Services must be available for the entire counties
or boroughs applicants propose to serve.
RFP Section 4.1, Section III Education, page 18, Paragraph number 2 states
“Applicants program must offer at least three (3) community education sessions
per contact quarter in each county served by the kinship caregiver program,
specific to kinship arrangements. Education sessions must include curriculums
such as Parenting a Second Time Around and other topics relevant to kinship care
as approved by OCFS.”
a. Are these community education sessions specifically for the relative caregivers
enrolled in services and seen as being similar to training sessions? Or are these
sessions to be open to all community members as a way of educating the
community on the relative caregiving program? In short, is the idea of this
program requirement to offer education specifically for program recipients or to
the community overall?
The primary purpose of education sessions is to provide community education sessions
specific to kinship arrangements.
It was mentioned that “OCFS is seeking new applicants who do not currently have
program funding”. We currently have a kinship program. Are we eligible to apply?
Please see A12.
Regarding item 2d. page 36: Must an applicant have an office location within a
county / borough they intend to serve, as long as the site address is within the
same OCFS region. For example, could an organization's office and program site
be located in Brooklyn, but they are proposing to serve clients from Manhattan and
Queens?
No. A program site must be located in at least one of the counties an applicant is
proposing to serve.
Regarding paragraph 4.1. page 16: "Applicants are to provide programs designed
specifically for kinship families, with legal custody or informal arrangements" -are families with either temporary or permanent custody eligible for services?
Yes.
Regarding the regions and counties listed on pages 45 and 46: Is it possible that
multiple awards will be made per region or per county (if more services are needed
for areas with more kinship families)? Within NYC, how many awards will be
made?
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It is possible that there will be more than one award made per region. It is the intention of
OCFS to make awards until funding available for this project is exhausted. Please refer to
Section 6.2 of the RFP for additional information.
Will more than one bidder be allowed to provide services to a particular county?
Please see A117.
Is there an expectation of a minimum or maximum number of families to be served
by each award?
Please see A4.
A) Can a family opt out of certain services but still be eligible to receive other
services which are being offered. For example can a family state they do not wish
to participate with case management services but will participate in the support
groups. B) What impact will this have on the evaluation of the program
participation by OCFS?
A) Services and programming must meet the needs of the children and families to be
served. B) This would be determined on a case by case basis.
On page 17 of the RFP it states that in order for a case to be open for longer than
12 months it must have the approval of OCFS' Program Manager. Examples of a
reason a case would be open longer than 12 months include but are not limited to
"increased risk of harm to the children residing in the kinship arrangement". Could
you elaborate on this statement.
A program would notify their OCFS Program Manager of a case that needs to remain
open longer than 12 months and explain the rationale for keeping the case open. The
OCFS Program Manager would then make the determination if the case should remain
open or be closed.
At times a child may be left in the custody of a relative and the whereabouts of the
parent or parents is unknown. In a case where the caregiver only has informal
custody of a child are there any legal or liability issues working with this child? Are
there any concerns if the family is being provided with respite services to the child
without the written consent of a parent?
OCFS cannot speak to any legal or liability issues for any specific case.
If we are currently offering services to eligible kinship families and will continue to
do so during the grant period, can those services and the matching funding they
offer count for the purpose of meeting outcomes and targets for this program? For
example: can we use our current peer support and family outings (funded through
other sources) to count for those requirements in the RFP, and use grant money to
only fund a staff member offering case management to these same families? Or
must all services required by this RFP only be funded by the $150,000 per year
total OCFS is offering?
Refer to Section 5.2 Proposed Budget; State Finance Law and Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles require that any expense incurred over more than one funding
source or program must be charged proportionately, and the method of allocation must
be documented.
One of the priority populations for this grant is “youth aging out of foster care,”
(section 2.2, page 9 of the RFP) and the grant does not allow us to serve youth with
“kinship foster care placements” (section 2.2, page 10 of the RFP). A) Does this
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mean that youth who are in foster care and will soon age out of it are eligible to be
served, but only if they are not in kinship foster care placements? B) What about
those who are both aging out and in kinship foster care placements? C) Also, at
what point will youth be considered “aging out of foster care” for the purposes of
this grant?
For A, B, and C: Youth in foster care cannot be served under this grant opportunity.
For the children’s support groups that we are required to offer once per month per
county (section 4.1.II, pages 17-18 of the RFP): are these groups required to be for
children of all ages? It seems incredibly difficult to design one support group that
actually addresses the needs of four year olds, ten year olds, and sixteen year
olds. Can we hold monthly groups for youth of different ages at each site, perhaps
ultimately offering each age group at each site a quarterly group, for example?
The minimum requirement is one (1) support group per month in each county. It is
permissible to provide additional support groups. Please refer to Section 4.1 Desired
Outcomes and Program Requirements.
Can group services be combined with group services for people in other custodial
situations, as long as this grant funding is only used for activities/services for the
kinship families? For example, could children with kinship caregivers do
recreational activities with children who have caregivers with legal guardianship
(paid for by other funds)? Could kinship caregivers participate in support groups
with caregivers with other custodial arrangements (paid for by other funds)?
Services and programming must meet the needs of the children and families to be
served. There might be instances of crossover in programming that meets the needs of
multiple groups. In these cases, documentation including notes justifying how the
specified event serves the needs of the child/family, identification of the specific
children/family who participated under this funding and the qualifying staff and staff time
providing the programming must be clear and available to OCFS upon request.
What does it mean that one of the two required sites must be the "primary site"
(Bidders’ Notice, page 1)? What is the definition of "primary" in this context, and
what would this look like for program implementation if both sites are to receive
the same level of services?
Please see A70.
Do you have recommendations on where we might be able to locate relevant data
to respond to the “baseline” portion of the Required Performance Targets
attachment? (Section 5.1, page 24 of the RFP)
No.
Support Groups (pg. 17 RFP): “Applicant’s staff must conduct a minimum of 1
support group a month for caregivers in each county served by the kinship
caregiver program”.
Question: What is the minimum and maximum number of group participants in a
caregiver group? For example, if a program serves 60 caregivers, what is the
expected number of participants in each monthly group? Can we provide monthly
groups to different caregivers?
It is an applicant’s responsibility to design and describe the specific plan to facilitate
support groups under this grant opportunity.
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2Support Groups (pg. 18 RFP): “Applicant’s staff must conduct a minimum of 1
support group a month for children in the kinship family in each county served by
the kinship caregiver program”.
Question: Is the expectation that these support groups will occur in the home
only? Or, can they occur in the agency? What if there is only 1 child residing in the
home? What if the caregiver does not want the bio-child to participate or if the biochild refuses? What if the child has an intellectual disability and is unable to
benefit from a group discussion?
OCFS cannot address case-specific examples at this time. Applicant’s staff must conduct
a minimum of one (1) support group a month in each county served by the kinship
caregiver program. See Section 4.1.II Support Groups for additional information.
General Support Group question: Will programs get credit for demonstrating
diligent efforts to outreach, offer, plan and implement these groups if there is low
turnout? Or cancellations for caregiver and youth groups?
No, services should be delivered as per RFP requirements
Question 9c: “Do you understand that applicants may receive a maximum of two
awards, and may request up to $150,000 per year, per award?”
Question: Please clarify and provide an example in which an agency could submit
2 applications and receive 2 awards.
Please refer to Section 3.1 Minimum Qualifications and Section 6.0 Minimum
Criteria/Evaluation Process.
What is the expectation of OCFS on the documentation for these cases? Where
should the case notes be entered?
Refer to Section 4.0 Program Requirements. Applicant’s staff must maintain accurate
program participant records and documentation to support service delivery at their
program site.
Will start up costs incurred prior to contract date of 9/1/2020 be allowed to be
submitted and paid from the Award if granted?
No, as per Section 2.4 Term of Contract, Contractors may not begin to provide services
prior to the contract start date.
Will local match funding be considered in addition to the $150,000 award from
OCFS and thus we can incur costs greater than $150,000 for this program?
Yes. Please see Section 5.2 Proposed Budget for additional information.
Does a local match which is encouraged factor into the number of points
earmarked for the Budget Section?
No. However, scores are determined based on the applicant’s responses to the
questions outlined in Section 5.4 Proposal Content. If the applicant’s provision of local
match funds favorably impacts the proposed program and this is articulated in the
applicant’s proposal, it MAY help the applicant earn points.
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